Public Document Pack

Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Thursday, 28th June, 2018
at 6.00 pm

PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING

Conference Room 3 - Civic Centre

This meeting is open to the public
Members

Councillor Bogle (Chair)
Councillor Bell
Councillor Houghton
Councillor Leggett
Councillor Noon
Councillor Savage
Councillor White

Contacts

Ed Grimshaw

Democratic Support Officer

Tel: 023 8083 2390

Email: ed.grimshaw@southampton.gov.uk

Mark Pirnie

Scrutiny Manager

Tel: 023 8083 3886

Email: mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk



mailto:ed.grimshaw@southampton.gov.uk
mailto:mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk

PUBLIC INFORMATION

ROLE OF HEALTH OVERVIEW SCRUTINY PANEL (TERMS OF REFERENCE)

The Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel’s responsibilities and terms of reference are set out
within Part 3 of the Council’'s Constitution: Responsibility for Functions

The general role and terms of reference for the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee, together with those for all Scrutiny Panels, are set out in Part 2 (Article 6) of the
Council’s Constitution, and their particular roles are set out in Part 4 (Overview and Scrutiny
Procedure Rules of the Constitution.

MOBILE TELEPHONES: - Please switch your mobile telephones to silent whilst in the meeting.

USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA: - The Council supports the video or audio recording of meetings
open to the public, for either live or subsequent broadcast. However, if, in the Chair’s opinion, a
person filming or recording a meeting or taking photographs is interrupting proceedings or
causing a disturbance, under the Council’s Standing Orders the person can be ordered to stop
their activity, or to leave the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being
recorded and to the use of those images and recordings for broadcasting and or/training
purposes. The meeting may be recorded by the press or members of the public.

Any person or organisation filming, recording or broadcasting any meeting of the Council is
responsible for any claims or other liability resulting from them doing so.

Details of the Council’'s Guidance on the recording of meetings is available on the Council’s
website.

PUBLIC REPRESENTATIONS

At the discretion of the Chair, members of the public may address the meeting on any report
included on the agenda in which they have a relevant interest. Any member of the public
wishing to address the meeting should advise the Democratic Support Officer (DSO) whose
contact details are on the front sheet of the agenda.

SMOKING POLICY - the Council operates a no-smoking policy in all civic buildings.

The Southampton City Council Strategy (2016-2020) is a key document and sets out the four

key outcomes that make up our vision.

Southampton has strong and sustainable economic growth

Children and young people get a good start in life

People in Southampton live safe, healthy, independent lives

Southampton is an attractive modern City, where people are proud to live and work
CONDUCT OF MEETING

BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED RULES OF PROCEDURE
Only those items listed on the attached The meeting is governed by the Council
agenda may be considered at this meeting. Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of the
Constitution.
QUORUM
The minimum number of appointed Members
required to be in attendance to hold the meeting
is 3.


http://www.southampton.gov.uk/Images/Council-strategy-2016-20_tcm63-387729.pdf

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct,
both the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” or “Other
Interest” they may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda.

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in
any matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband
or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation

to:
(i)
(ii)

(iif)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)
(vii)

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from
Southampton City Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect
of any expense incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which
the you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council
under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed,
and which has not been fully discharged.

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton.

Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of
Southampton for a month or longer.

Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council
and the tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests.

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge)
has a place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either:

(a) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth
of the total issued share capital of that body, or

(b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a
beneficial interest that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that class.

OTHER INTERESTS

A Member must regard himself or herself as having an, ‘Other Interest’ in any
membership of, or occupation of a position of general control or management in:

Any body to which they have been appointed or nominated by Southampton
City Council

Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature

Any body directed to charitable purposes

Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or

policy



PRINCIPLES OF DECISION MAKING

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:-

proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome);
due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;

respect for human rights;

a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency;
setting out what options have been considered;

setting out reasons for the decision; and

clarity of aims and desired outcomes.

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must:

e understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.
The decision-maker must direct itself properly in law;

e take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the
authority as a matter of legal obligation to take into account);

e |eave out of account irrelevant considerations;

e act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good;

e not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known
as the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle);

e comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual

basis. Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward

funding are unlawful; and
e act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness.

DATES OF MEETINGS: MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/2019

2018 2019
28 June 28 February
30 August 25 April
1 November
6 December




AGENDA

1 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR

To elect Vice Chair for the Municipal Year 2018/19.

2 APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

To note any changes in membership of the Panel made in accordance with Council
Procedure Rule 4.3.

3 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS

In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct,
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the
agenda for this meeting.

NOTE: Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Democratic
Support Officer.

4 DECLARATIONS OF SCRUTINY INTEREST

Members are invited to declare any prior participation in any decision taken by a
Committee, Sub-Committee, or Panel of the Council on the agenda and being
scrutinised at this meeting.

5 DECLARATION OF PARTY POLITICAL WHIP

Members are invited to declare the application of any party political whip on any matter
on the agenda and being scrutinised at this meeting.

6 STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR

7  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)
(Pages 1-4)

To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 26 April 2018 and
to deal with any matters arising, attached.

8 WINTER PRESSURES 2017/18
(Pages 5 - 24)

Report of the Director of System Delivery at Southampton City CCG providing the
Panel with a summary of winter pressures in 2017/18 and the work of the South West
Hampshire Operational Resilience Group.



COMMISSIONING OF INTERGRATED URGENT CARE (IUC) SERVICES FOR
SOUTHAMPTON
(Pages 25 - 28)

Report of the Head of Primary Care, Southampton City CCG, providing the Panel with
an update with regards to the commissioning of integrated urgent care services in
Southampton.

Wednesday, 20 June 2018 SERVICE DIRECTOR, LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE



Agenda Item 7

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL
HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 26 APRIL 2018

Present: Councillors Bogle (Chair), White (Vice-Chair), Houghton, Mintoff, Noon

and Savage

Apologies: Councillors P Baillie

23. APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

It was noted that following receipt of the apologies of Councillor Baillie.

24. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)
RESOLVED: that the minutes for the Panel meeting on 22 February 2018 be approved
and signed as a correct record.

25. SOUTHAMPTON PROVIDER DRAFT QUALITY ACCOUNTS 2017/18

The Panel considered the report of Service Director, Legal and Governance
introducing the 2017/18 draft Quality Accounts for NHS providers operating within
Southampton.

John Richards (Chief Executive Officer, NHS Southampton City CCG) and Stephanie
Ramsey (Chief Quality Officer and Chief Nurse, NHS Southampton City CCG), were in
attendance and with the consent of the Chair provided the Panel with the CCG’s
opinion on the content of the draft quality accounts attached to the report. In addition,
in response to questioning related to innovation and IT, the CCG outlined proposals for
amendments to the 111 service.

The Panel heard from each of the service providers in turn giving them an opportunity
to outline the highlights of the last 12 months and detail the reasoning for the inclusion
of their priorities for the forthcoming year.

Solent NHS Trust

David Noyes (Chief Operating Officer, Southampton and County Services - Solent
NHS Trust), Angela Anderson (Head of Professional Standards and Regulations —
Solent NHS Trust) were in attendance and with the consent of the Chair outlined the
years performance, challenges for the forthcoming year and the rationale behind the
2018/19 Trust priorities.

The Panel were informed that the results of the staff survey had been positive and that
progress had been made reducing the number of delayed discharges. The Trust
outlined efforts being undertaken to address staff recruitment and retention issues. It
was noted that staff sickness rates had already improved.

It was also noted that, following a re-inspection by the Care Quality Commission, Child
and Adolescent Mental Health Services and Substance Misuse Services were now
rated as ‘Good’ from ‘Requires Improvement’. This positive development was

-17 -
Page 1



welcomed by the Panel. In addition it was explained to the Panel what the likely
effects of the Sustainable Transformation Plan would be and in response to
questioning the Trust’s current financial position was outlined to the Panel.

Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust

Sara Courtney (Deputy Director of Nursing and Allied Healthcare Professionals -
Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust) Helen Ludford (Associate Director of Quality
Governance - Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust) were in attendance and with the
consent of the Chair outlined the years performance, challenges for the forthcoming
year and the Trust’s priorities for 2018/19. In addition Mr Joe Hannigan representing
the Patients forum was present and, with consent of the Chair, addressed the meeting.

The Panel were informed that the Trust was continuing to embed improvements across
the organisation following the publication of the Mazars report and the subsequent
CQC Inspection report. The introduction of the Crisis Lounge was discussed. It was
reported that, since opening in October 2017, the service had already had a positive
impact on service users and Emergency Department attendance, and was now open
24 hours a day 7 days a week.

The Panel noted that the Family Liaison officer continued to effectively support families
and carers and was a key element of the Trust’s drive to improve patient and staff
engagement.

It was acknowledged by the Trust that they, alongside most NHS providers, continued
to experience workforce challenges, especially in the recruitment and retention of
Mental Health Nurses and Psychiatrists. The Trust outlined its approach to addressing
this concern including the development of a retention plan that was now being
embedded across Southern Health.

The Panel recognised that the performance of the Trust continued to improve and that
a positive change in culture was evident. The Panel did however question the impact
that the recent fines, relating to previous Trust shortcomings, would have on the Trust’s
finances.

University Hospital Southampton NHS Foundation Trust

Gail Byrne (Director of Nursing and Organisational Development - University Hospital
Southampton NHS Foundation Trust) was in attendance and with the consent of the
Chair outlined the years performance, challenges for the forthcoming year and the
rationale behind the 2018/19 Trust priorities.

The Panel acknowledged that the findings from the CQC inspection and the recent
staff survey indicated that the Trust had performed well over the year. The Panel
noted that staff members had shown exceptional commitment to the Trust and patients
during the period of bad weather and heavy snow.

The Trust acknowledged that the 4 hour waiting time target for the Emergency
Department and delayed discharges continued to be challenging but noted that the
Trust continued to work with partners to improve performance.

-18 -
Page 2



Panel Members requested that the Trust should look to enhance its onsite facilities for
parking, enabling better collection and drop off facilities for patients and recently
discharged patients, especially for those being discharged in wheelchairs or on
crutches.

It was also noted that workforce matters continued to be a challenge and that the Trust
had set up an apprenticeship scheme for 50 students. It was also noted that the
hospital continued to utilise technology effectively to improve outcomes.

Care UK — Southampton NHS treatment Centre

Anne Richardson (Head of Nursing and Clinical Services Southampton NHS Treatment
Centre - Care UK) was in attendance and with the consent of the Chair outlined the
years performance, challenges for the forthcoming year and priorities for 2018/19.

The Panel acknowledged that Care UK continued to provide a good service and that
there was a high customer satisfaction rating for those attending the treatment centre.
The Panel were informed that Care UK had sought to learn from previous “never
events” that had occurred at the Treatment Centre.

The Panel noted the CCG’s comments with regards to the increasing length of time it
took in 2017/18 for patients who had been referred for treatment receiving the required
treatment at the Treatment Centre.

RESOLVED that the Panel:

(1) Noted the appended 2017/2018 draft Quality Accounts for each of the
City’s NHS providers;
(i) Agreed that a response to each of the Quality Accounts would be

constructed that encompassed the comments made by the Panel, and in
consultation with the Chair of the Panel, for inclusion within the final draft
of each account; and

(iii) Requested that the further development of the 111 service be brought to
the Panel for consideration at a suitable meeting.

-19 -
Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

DECISION-MAKER: HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL

SUBJECT: WINTER PRESSURES 2017/18

DATE OF DECISION: 28 JUNE 2018

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF SYSTEM DELIVERY, SOUTHAMPTON

CITY CCG
CONTACT DETAILS

AUTHOR: Name: | David Strivens Tel: | 023 8029 6009
E-mail: | david.strivens@nhs.net

Director Name: | Peter Horne Tel: | 023 8072 5660
E-mail: | phorne@nhs.net

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

None

BRIEF SUMMARY

The paper attached at Appendix 1 is a summary report prepared on behalf of the whole
system previously presented to the A&E Delivery Board for Southampton and South
West Hampshire.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

(1) To note the impact winter pressure had on health and social care in
Southampton in 2017/18, and the lessons learned for next winter.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To enable the Panel to consider 2017/18 winter pressures and the work of the
South West Hampshire Operational Resilience Group.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

2. Not applicable

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

3. At the request of the Panel, attached as Appendix 1 is a report from the South
West Hampshire Operational Resilience Group (ORG), the group responsible
for planning and responding to periods of pressure in the local health and
social care system. This document captures lessons identified by the ORG
during the planning for winter 2017/18, and the execution of those plans.

4, The HOSP are requested to note the report and the lessons identified for next
winter.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Capital/Revenue

5. None
Property/Other
6. None

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS




Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

7. None

Other Legal Implications:

8. None

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

9. None

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS

10. None

KEY DECISION? No

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: All

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

1. South West Hampshire Operational Resilience Group Winter Report

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. None

Equality Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and No
Safety Impact Assessment (ESIA) to be carried out.

Privacy Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require a Privacy Impact No
Assessment (PIA) to be carried out.

Other Background Documents
Other Background documents available for inspection at:

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to
Information Procedure Rules /
Schedule 12A allowing document to
be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1. None

Page 6




Agenda Iltem 8

Appendix 1

South West Hampshire Operational Resilience Group
Winter 2017/18 Report
Introduction

1. This paper captures lessons identified by South West Hants Operational Resilience Group (ORG) during
the planning for winter 2017/18, and the execution of those plans. This will contribute to planning for
next winter.

2. South West Hampshire Operational Resilience Group is a sub-group of the Accident & Emergency
Delivery Board, responsible for planning and responding to periods of pressure in the local health and
social care system. The area covered is Southampton City and the New Forest, as well as the area
immediately surrounding Southampton to the North and East.

3. The following organisations send representatives to ORG:

a) University Hospital Southampton NHS Foundation Trust (UHS)
b) South Central Ambulance Service (SCAS)

¢) Southampton Minor Injuries Unit (MIU)

d) SCAS Patient Transport Service

e) Partnering Health Ltd (PHL) — GP Out of Hours service
f)  Southampton City Council (SCC) — Adult social care

g) Hampshire County Council (HCC) — Adult social care
h) Solent NHS Trust

i) Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust (SHFT)

j)  Southampton Primary Care Ltd (SPCL)

k) West Hampshire CCG

[) Southampton City CCG

4. This paper will cover the below:

a) Planning
b) Execution
o Bank Holiday period
o Jan—Mar 18
c¢) A summary of lessons identified and actions required

Planning

5. ORG started planning for winter in September 2017, using the below principles:

e Use data to drive planning and decision making. Detailed activity data from 2014 was available
on the ORG Planning Dashboard, and SHREWD? data from 2016/17 was used to identify trends.
e Learning from previous years — what works well, what could have been done better

1 Single Health Resilience Early Warning Database is a system that gives real-time information on pressure in the healthcare system

Page 7



e Organisational plans were shared with system partners so that the whole system was aware of
each other’s actions. All partners were specifically asked what support they expected from
other providers, and what support they could give during escalation.

e  “Mini Perfect Week” exercises to identify best practice and improve patient flow were run
throughout the year

e  Monthly face-to-face ORG meetings kept the focus on planning for winter.

e  Patient communication co-ordinated across the system, and a consistent message given out to
call 111, try pharmacy first, and to raise awareness of primary care hubs.

6. Winter money was made available to systems following the Budget on 22" November 2017. Acute
hospitals were asked to bid for funds in conjunction with CCGs. The money was later split into streams
covering mental health, primary care and general acute care. Bids were submitted in December 2017
and schemes totalling just under £3m were funded. All of the schemes were focussed on the period
between January and March; a full list is at Annex A.

Execution

7. Bank Holiday period. Over the period between Monday 18" December 2017 and Sunday 7t January
2018, the system saw:

a) 4,441 ambulance conveyances to A&E; 14.4% higher than in 2015/16 and 3.4% higher than
2016/17

b) 14,216 calls to NHS111; 29.9% higher than in 2015/16 and 24.4% higher than 2016/17

c) 2,757 non-elective admissions to UHS; 8.5% higher than in 2015/16 and 4.7% lower than in
2016/17

d) 5,133 A&E attendances; 4.5% higher than in 2015/16 and 0.3% lower than in 2016/17

e) 3,655 MIU attendances; 79.6% higher than in 2015/16 and 49.2% higher than in 2016/17

f) An average of 82 delayed transfers of care (DTOCs) per day; 30% lower than in 2016/17

g) UHS bed deficit (which gives an indication of patient flow across the trust) was at an average of
11; 35.5% better than in 2016/17.

8. The large increase in MIU attendances can be attributed to increased awareness among the public.
9. Calls to 111 were higher than in previous years. The peaks in demand were more pronounced, making
planning more difficult, as shown below. Call handler staffing provision was a significant risk to system

resilience over this period, however due to good planning by 111 and system mitigating actions, high
demand did not have a negative impact on the rest of the system.

Page 8



Christmas 111 Activity
Data Source: SUS PhR Inpatients | SCW CSU

1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200

0
7 days before 5 days before 3 days before Christmas Eve Boxing Day 3 days after  5daysafter New Years Day 9 daysafter 11 daysafter 13 days after
Christmas Day Christmas Day Christmas Day Christmas Day Christmas Day Christmas Day Christmas Day Christmas Day

Bank Holidays =~ ———15/16 Activity =~ —— 16/17 Activity =~ ——17/18 Activity

10. A&E attendances were marginally higher than last year, with a peak on 15t Jan 2018 of 366 attendances.
This was the first winter that GP streaming? was in place at UHS A&E (see below), which worked very
well in seeing, treating and discharging patients quickly, and supported the A&E department’s ability to
maintain patient flow.

Christmas ED Activity
Data Source: SUS PbR EM | SCW CSU

300
250
200

150

50

0
7 days before 5 days before 3 days before Christmas Eve  Boxing Day 3 days after 5 days after New Years Day 9daysafter 11 daysafter 13 days after
Christmas Day Christmas Day Christmas Day Christmas Day Christmas Day Christmas Day Christmas Day Christmas Day

Bank Holidays =~ ———15/16 Activity =~ ——16/17 Activity = ——17/18 Activity

10 Mo. patients attending GP stream (commenced 01/10/17)

120

100

£

60

a0

0

u i
- P~ P~ P~ P~ P~ P~ P~ P~ = - P~ P~ [ =] w ﬂ
— - — — - - - - — — — — — — — -
(= (=] =] =] (=] (=] =] (=] o = = [=] [=] =] = =] (=]
g & § & 9 & & &5 & & @ a4 &9 =
—- - hal - fad —- - La) - - - hal hal kel (=] (=] [=]
= . - SR = - T = S S - = S ==
(=1 (=1 - ™~ ™~ (=] - - i~ (=1 (=] - ™~ m (=] - ~

2 GP streaming: a GP located at A&E to see and treat patients without the need for admission or taking up A&E
resources.

Page 9



11. UHS bed balance is a high level measure of flow in the hospital. A bed deficit —

indicated by a negative

number — means that there are more admissions expected than discharges planned. A bed surplus

means that there are more than enough beds to cope with expected admissions. Whilst the average for

this period in 2017/18 suggests that flow was better this winter, the graph below shows that the

variation this year was more pronounced. The large bed surplus before Christmas Eve shows that large

numbers were discharged prior to the bank holidays, and that flow was maintained very well between
Christmas and New Year. The peaks after New Year’s Eve (NYE) were during the period of extreme

pressu

re over that weekend, and the immediate recovery.

1

b"’ )

100

©7 9Tk PO

-150

UHS Bed Balance

50

50

ra

LR
2% AR AR ARt A2 WY W2
bbbbbb%bq@

N

o¥ ¥ 6’5\

m16/17
m17/18

12. PHL (GP Out of Hours service) also saw significant spikes in activity compared to previous years (the

below

data is across all of the PHL footprint).

PHL HDOCS all activity

2000

1800

1600

A

1400

1200

o
=
-
—

e 7115,/ 16

|
I —
——

|'Il-...-.-
L

e

2016/17
e 2017,/ 18

Page 10




13. In summary, during this period, urgent care demand was at a high level throughout; however this did

14.

not lead to a lack of patient flow as it has in previous years. Patient flow was maintained very well due
to Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOCs) being low, simple discharges being maintained and good system
working, especially between UHS and community providers regarding rehab/reablement care and
admission avoidance.

New Year’s Weekend Pressure. The system came under severe pressure, with urgent care demand at
very high levels. Although patient flow had been maintained very well, consistently high A&E
attendances and ambulance conveyances, which peaked on New Year’s Day, put significant strain on all
healthcare providers. A brief timeline of events is in the table below.

Date Issue
Sunday 3 December | Very high acuity and volume of UHS A&E presentations, sustained over
2017 onwards several weeks. Acuity in resus particularly high in lead up to NYE

Friday 29 December | Portsmouth system escalated to OPEL 43, criteria agreed for “soft” diverts
2017 from Portsmouth Hospitals Trust (PHT). NHS England task Portsmouth system
with leading co-ordination across Wessex

Saturday 30 UHS escalated to OPEL 4. Divert agreed from PHT for certain specialties only;
December 2017 in total 65 patients were diverted to UHS

Sunday 1 January Busiest day at UHS A&E (366 attendances). All acute hospitals in SW Hants
2018 and Portsmouth report no bed capacity and full A&E

1-7 January 2018 Continued high demand at UHS A&E. No more diverts requested. Complete
lack of patient flow as all hospitals in SW Hants system at capacity, very little
social care capacity. 17 patients from divert remained inpatients at UHS until
7th Jan, affecting their ability to see SW Hants patients

15

16.

17.

. More detail, and lessons learned from this specific period of pressure can be found at Annex B. In

summary, this was a period of intense pressure, where surrounding systems coming under pressure
had a huge impact on South West Hants. Internal escalation was followed and worked well, however
the extreme nature of the demand was exceptional. Planning for next winter will take this into account.

Jan — Mar 18. Detailed data is not yet available for this period. After the immediate recovery from NYE
weekend, urgent care demand has remained at expected levels, with one significant peak on 12 and 13
March 2018, where high A&E attendances caused UHS to escalate to OPEL 4.

Winter money has funded several schemes that have been focussed on relieving pressure in the system
during this period:

a) Additional primary care capacity in Southampton, both during the day and evenings/weekends
b) GP streaming in A&E — extended hours

¢) Additional mental health support to UHS A&E

d) Additional staff in UHS A&E at evenings and weekend

e) Clinicians in 111 call centre

3 OPEL 4 is the highest level of alert, equivalent to what used to be called ‘Black Alert’.

Page 11



18. Seasonal flu was worse this year than in previous years, however it did not reach levels seen in 2010.
ORG focussed on operational planning for increased pressure caused by flu. As can be seen below, UHS
saw periods where significant numbers of beds were closed due to flu, most pronounced during the
first week in January 2018.

19. ORG planned for a second, smaller peak in flu admissions in February, based on the trend from
2015/16, however this did not materialise.

Historical trends in ILI GP consultation rates for the South East’

&] -
A0 4
5
X
£l
8
g
g o |
#
(-4
10
1] _.- —
27 29 3
""""" SE1316 - England 116 ——-5SE 1617 - - -England 16/17 =—=SE17/18 =England 17/18
Beds Closed - Flu
45
40 i
35
. NA )
. |\ /

20 \-\

15 \

10 \
\

D

~'\:-»
r
I
L
ot

=
=

o w
07/12/2017 ——
-——‘——-‘
|
—

12/12/2017

14/03/2018 i

i
o
=
[
=
N
=
w
=
S

13/02/2018 |__—

20/12/2017
28/12/2017
02/01/2018
N~ 10/01/2018
18/01/2018
23/01/2018
v 31/01/2018
08/02/2018
©  21/02/2018
° o103/2018 E
06/03/2018
22/03/2018
27/03/2018
04/04/2018
12/04/2018
17/04/2018
25/04/2018

I
li=)
wul
(=]
wu
ey

5

N
[y
w
=
2}
~

1

w
[y

6

[y
~

=—Beds Closed - Flu

Page 12



Lessons Identified

20. A full list of lessons identified and actions can be found at Annex B. Highlights and themes are:

a) SHREWD was helpful in giving an up-to-date picture of system capacity, and enabling de-
escalation actions to be taken earlier than would otherwise be the case.

b) System working within South West Hants; all providers reported mature relationships and
productive system calls that had a positive impact on patient flow.

c) Flexibility of SPCL meant that GP streaming capacity, and hub capacity (primary care), could be
released at very short notice, benefiting the whole system.

d) GP streaming in A&E was a useful resource, which worked best when GPs were proactive in
seeing less complex patients and ambulance arrivals.

e) Inappropriate referrals from 111 to A&E were reported by several providers. Work is required
on the Directory of Service to ensure alternatives are appropriately signposted. The most
effective measure would be clinicians in the 111 call centre.

f) Large volume of assurance information requested from NHS England and NHS Improvement,
often different departments requesting the same information.

g) Pressure from external systems had a real impact on South West Hants, particularly UHS.

21. In summary, this winter saw higher urgent care demand than previous years, however patient flow was

well maintained, with the exception of several periods of significant pressure. The system planned well,
and worked well to de-escalate promptly and support the provider under the most pressure.

Page 13



Annex A

Winter Funding 2018/19 - allocated schemes

Scheme

Summary Details

Organisation

Amount

Amount

Requested

Funded

Tranche 1 funding to Improvement in UHS's M7 forecast position and A&E
Finances | UHS improvement by maintaining current performance level UHS £1832000 | 1.832.000 15 December
of 90.13% YTD throughout Q4 2017/18 T T 2017
Children's Mental Extension funding of a children's MH nurse at UHS ED to
Health psychiatric extend the hours of availability to match peak demand -
fotr;]tglid liaison in ED - UHS, current Band 7 nurse to be supported by Band 8a nurse UHS £130,000 £93,860 > Dzegi;nber
PHFT, HHFT to provide leadership and extra capacity
Psychiatric liaison - 1 WTE additional care coordinator to work within
dual diagnosis - UHS Commissioned Community Substance Misuse Services to
Y provide bespoke care coordiantion and recovery planning
t;"@; Hz/latletr;]tglid to ensure effective engagement of people identified by UHS £35,000 £25,270 15 Dze(():i;nber
[N University Hospital Southampton Alcohol Care Team and
» supported into Community Services by In Reach
provision.
CHC - Implement 12 x Pathway Three 'Discharge to Assess' beds. Reduction 13 December
System Bid | Discharge to Assess in Acute and Non-acute DTOCs WHCCG £300,000 £300,000 2017
Model
Acute Visiting Service Additional capacity, ANP, paramedics, GPs
. Prevent admission 15 December
SR Visit early in the day so that other services can be SPCL £60,000 £60,000 2017
mobilised
Further enhance ED, Acute Medical Unit - evenings & weekends,
clincian capacity Ambulatory Emergency Care, Clinical Decisions Unit, 15 December
System Bid | within the ED, and Mgt/Matron rota to strength flow management and UHS £300,000 £300,000 2017
alternative hospital problem resolution out of hours.
assessment facilities




GT abed

Scheme

Supplementing co-

Summary Details

Supplementing exisiting GP service, adding GP shifts

Organisation

Amount
Requested

Amount
Funded

15 December

System Bid | located GP Service working within the ED also focused on assessment and UHS £130,000 £130,000
discharge of frail/complex medical patients. 2017
Clinicians in 111 call Additional clinicians in 111 call centre to support triage
centre and review of ED and Green calls. Additional capacity will Porstmouth
System Bid be shared across Hampshire CCGs. CCGon behalf £50,000 £50,000 15 December
Also provide additional funding for pharmacist in call of Hampshire 2017
centre at peak periods CCGs
Mental Health Mental Health Navigators in 111/O0H GP service. MH
. - . . . - 15 December
System Bid | Navigation Service nurses with knowledge and experience of navigating the SCAS/PHL £110,000 £110,000 2017
mental healthcare system
i WHCCG Extended Medicines Management in practices and increased
System Bi Access capacity for extended access hubs WHCCG £63,000 £63,000
Acute Visiting Service | TBC - our bid originally said we wanted £500k to enhance
SCCCG GP Extended Access capacity within existing hub services during Q4, and pump
. . . 15 December
Primary Hubs prime the IUC pilot. SPCL £32,048 2017
Care Bid The email allocating us the money said it was for AHVS

and GP Extended Access Hubs




9T abed

Annex B

Winter 2017/18 Lessons —Lessons Log for ORG

No. | Lesson Identified — Description Impact and Solutions Action Required
1. | Winter funding: e Should be managed through AEDB Feed back to NHSE
e Very short deadline from NHSE e Decide at AEDB what the focus and principles’ should
e Several different streams, which became confusing: NHSE, be, then disseminate for completion To accommodate the
then mental health, then primary care e Use money to bolster existing work, focussed on potential for a short notice
e Ongoing requirement for feedback every 2 weeks admission avoidance and discharge, rather than start | request, principles for
new work spending should be agreed
e Especially avoid anything that requires recruitment — | up-front as part of the
it takes too long winter planning process
2. | Planning at ORG e Send out template in July/August Planning for winter 18/19

Start early

NHSE asked systems for very detailed assurance of plans
Planning early at ORG reminds everyone to start their own
planning

Early identification of gaps/interfaces between providers that
require additional action

Ensure data from last year(s) is shared, discussed and
actions agreed

Table-top exercise of escalation framework, using
scenarios from previous year

Table-top exercise with PSEH system




)T abed

e Whatever the reasons, Portsmouth system and North & Mid
Hants come under pressure earlier than SW Hants

e This led to requests for diverts, which increased pressure on
UHS and lengthened recovery period

systems will come under pressure early, and will ask
for help

When considering requests for external support,
especially diverts from PHT, consider impact it may
have in 2 days’ time as pressure likely to increase in
our system

No. | Lesson Identified — Description Impact and Solutions Action Required
3. | List of NHSE requests for written assurance or plans: e Takes resource away from planning and operational Feed back to NHSE
e 9t QOctober : 1%t draft of winter plans, including assurance management, especially when deadlines are very
template, cover letter and key winter contacts tight, which is often the case
e 30t October — 315t March: escalation/de-escalation reporting e Several requests asked for the same assurance from
e November —regular GPFV submission on primary care access. different parts of NHSE e.g. primary care and delivery
This duplicates a lot of information in the winter templates team assurance on impact of winter funding
e 17" November — 2™ draft of winter plans, following feedback
from Wessex LAT
e 17" November — Winter assurance collection (staffing and
capacity over bank holiday period)
e 20% November — Clinical Escalation Actions (acute trusts)
e 20% November — Primary Care collection (access over bank
holiday period)
e 30* November — NHS111 assurance
e 6™ December — reconfirm access to primary care over bank
holiday period
e 19% January — primary care evaluation; in depth data on
capacity over Christmas/NYE
e 2" March — assurance requested every Friday in March, and
6t April, for weekend on-call arrangements and patient flow
4. External systems escalating before SW Hants e In planning for next winter, assume that other Planning for winter 18/19




8T abed

are on them, and they are run in a calm and controlled manner.

date situation report and put actions in place to
enable system de-escalation.

Do not routinely conduct calls more than once a
week; schedule ad-hoc calls when required

Over a weekend: calls on a Friday and Monday are
helpful, not during the weekend as the right people
won’t be on them

No. | Lesson Identified — Description Impact and Solutions Action Required
5. | Key lead indicators for pressure: e Put stranded patients indicator onto SHREWD SHREWD strategic
e Outlying patients were a lead indicator for pressure e When these indicators start to move from Amber to | direction meeting on 8%
e Stranded patient numbers increase (threshold?) Red, ensure all providers are aware and start de- Feb 2018
e Lower discharges than planned in lead up to Christmas escalation actions
e Other systems escalating to OPEL 4
6. Complex discharges e Ensure IDB staffed appropriately between Christmas Planning for winter 18/19
e Don’t slow down between Christmas and NY and NY
e Feedback from IDB manager at NYE review e Ensure external parties also have staff in during this Taken forward by IDB
period e.g. CHC, Fast Track Leaders
e Additional push on complex discharge in preparation
for January pressures
7. NHSE decision not to open ICC over NYE weekend, and instead e An early decision to set up an ICC would have given
tasking PSEH run inter-system response systems much-needed centralised command and
control across HIOW for decisions such as diverts and
critical care capacity
e Led to Portsmouth focus of all actions e.g. HCC
reablement resources being redirected to supporting
QAH bed flow, to the detriment of UHS and others
8. Assurance calls over NYE bank holiday e This diverted decision makers away from front line, Feed back to NHSE/PSEH
e Conference calls every 2 hours, requiring presence of senior which is where they needed to be
clinical and operational managers e lack of clear direction — confusion created by not
declaring major incident, and not taking control
9. SW Hants ORG calls work well and add value when the right people | ¢ Be clear on the aim of TCs: to give everyone an up-to- | Planning for winter 18/19




6T abed

No. | Lesson Identified — Description Impact and Solutions Action Required
10. | Escalation framework: e Replace/supplement with set of action cards for Propose at ORG
e Table top exercise raised that framework doesn’t closely various scenarios of pressure increasing
reflect what happens when pressure hits the system e Align closely to SHREWD thresholds
e Useful as a check list of what organisations should do in e This will make it easier to implement SHREWD
response to pressure, but all will follow internal escalation Escalation
processes rather than this one
11. | GP streamingin ED e Alleviate pressure on ED Being taken forward by
e More patients seen over busy weekends UHS ED colleagues, CCGs
e Proactive GP going into minors/majors and pulling patients and SPCL
works best
eGP in pitstop during busiest periods worked well
12. | SPCL support to wider system e Continued involvement with ORG Feed back to SPCL
e Short notice flexibility and increased capacity in ED, hubs, e Include in planning for winter 18/19 and other Planning for winter 18/19
support to practices and AVS has helped prevent admissions periods of pressure
and improve ED performance e Consider as priority for winter funding bids — AVS
e Involvement in ORG calls has helped de-escalation actions and
admission avoidance at weekends
13. | There is potential for more to be done at 111 to prevent patients e Get patients to the right place first time: cliniciansin | ® Investigate — 111 to
presenting to ED unnecessarily 111 call centre provide evidence
e  PHL will be trialling one-hour GP re-triage of patients | @ Cliniciansin 111 call
with an ED disposition centre
14. | Minor Injuries Unit — extending evening opening hours does not e Not a viable system de-escalation action e Raised with ED/MIU to

result in easing pressure at UHS front door

Opened until midnight on 8™ December 2017; this has also
been trialled twice previously in 2017

No patients seen between 2200 and midnight on any of the
occasions

Better to focus on re-direction of patients from ED to
MIU in-hours, before they arrive at ED
Screen in ED with current MIU waiting time displayed

take forward
e ?18/19 SDIP




0z abed

No. | Lesson Identified — Description Impact and Solutions Action Required
15. | Flu worse than previous years e ORG needs to plan for additional pressure this places | ® Planning for winter
e More patients hospitalised on the system 18/19
e Decision point in Feb — based on 15/16 data e Use ILI data and profile — local data from previous
years
16. | Home Care 7 day working — formally extending the assessment Early results would suggest that there is value in this e Lessons learnt to be
approach in Home care to include weekends approach rather than purely investing in front line Home shared with system
e Pilot of 7 day working opened 2 weeks before Christmas Care capacity groups i.e. Better Care
and will extend to 31t of March 2018. e Would be a key element to develop further over Southampton (at end
e Development of new pathway with HDT to promote this busy periods in 2018/19 ahead of the new of pilot)
approach still progressing. framework in April 2019 e Planning for winter
e Expanded hours available within pilot agreed in January e Investing in infrastructure support in Home Care 18/19
2018. supports the wider development of capacity.
17. | Patient comms. An early aspiration of ORG was for all patient e Focus on one key message e.g. hub availability to e Comms team planner
communications from all providers to send a similar message. CCG keep it extra simple
comms team worked up key messages which were shared with e If we want to do some real, impactful comms (buses,
ORG, however seemed to have little impact, or wasn’t used. radio, TV etc) then we need money, and to plan from
August at the latest
18. | Adverse Weather 26™" Feb to 4t March e Believe the weather forecasts and plan for aftermath | e Putin atable top

e Had a big impact on all health services

e EPRR leads took over

e This was a business continuity issue however ORG should
plan for the peak in demand after snow

e 111 and OOH demand was very high

once roads are clear
e Mutual aid and comms between providers

exercise as part of
winter prep




Annex C
New Year’s Day Bank Holiday Weekend — After Action Review

At ORG on 11t January 2018 the group conducted a review of the winter bank holiday period, which was one of very high demand across the UK, particularly for
urgent and emergency care.

Themes ldentified. Full answers are in the table below.

1. When and where did pressure first start to build up?
e From 3" Dec: very high volume and acuity of urgent and emergency care presentations
e Number of stranded patients at UHS increased
e Surrounding trusts began struggling

2. What went well?

e System working

T¢ abed

o High level of trust between colleagues
o SHREWD
o System calls productive and supportive

Flexibility of urgent care providers, particularly UHS, PHL and SPCL

GP streaming in ED

Clinical engagement
o UHS downstream wards pulling patients from ED and responding very quickly to requests
o SHFT — good engagement in additional actions to maximise discharge and admission avoidance
o All providers — staff going above and beyond (staying late, volunteering for extra shifts)

Integrated working between community health staff and social care (SCC and Solent)

3. What didn’t go well?

e Pressure from other systems affecting SW Hants



o Diverts from multiple systems to UHS
o Ambulances queuing at Winchester and PHT
e Divert policy changed too close to BH weekend
e Conference calls every 2 hours were not productive
e There could be more focus on DTOCs during quiet period between Christmas and New Year’s Eve

4. Wider system review. It would be beneficial if ORG could have sight of any high level debrief that was conducted by system leaders following the NYE
weekend.

Z¢ abed



No Question UHS Community Ambulance Social Care
1. | When and where did From 3" Dec: very high Fewer discharges than e From 29" Nov: demand and | ¢ Reablement and dom care
pressure first start to build acuity and volume of ED usual from inpatient wards acuity increased beyond market slowed down, main
up? presentations, sustained prior to Christmas, mainly expected levels issue lack of double up care
over several weeks due to acuity of patients e Ambulances queuing at
Surrounding trusts began Slowdown in care packages Winchester and PHT
struggling earlier than UHS
Number of stranded
patients increased
dramatically
DTOCs consistently high
Acuity in resus very high
2. | What went well? System working — high level Clinical engagement with e Ambulance handovers at e System calls, SHREWD
of trust and mature emphasis on discharge UHS e Behaviour across the
working prior to Bank Holidays, and system — remaining calm
§ GP streaming — 2" GP in ED with increased demand e Decisions made in timely
® AEC hot clinic too patients Quick reviews and fashion
% from ED discharges

Consultants offering to
work on NYE despite not
being on rota

Internal team working —
staff regularly going above
and beyond

Direct admissions to wards
e.g. ASU input to pitstop,
wards collecting from ED
Downstream wards
responding very quickly to
requests

Frailty service and
admission avoidance team
maximising management in
own home

Additional ward rounds
System calls very
productive and supportive
Integrated Urgent
Response Service proved
very flexible, speedy
response to need




No

Question

UHS

Community

Ambulance

Social Care

What didn’t go well?

Multiple diverts from other
hospitals worsened lack of
medical beds

ITU capacity taken up by
loW patients that would
normally have gone to PHT
Conference calls every 2
hours over NYE weekend
Divert policy changed too
close to BH weekend

Suggestion: could dom care
availability be put onto
SHREWD?

Ambulances queuing at PHT
and Winchester — delays in
other areas having a knock-
on impact in SW Hants
Time on scene could have
been reduced

Within Integrated
Discharge Bureau, HCC
reablement resources
diverted to PHT

Some partners within IDB
appearing to take foot off
gas between Xmas and NYE
— could more have been
done to move patients in
between during quiet
period?

vz abed




Agenda Item 9

DECISION-MAKER: HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL

SUBJECT: COMMISSIONING OF INTEGRATED URGENT CARE
(lUC) SERVICES FOR SOUTHAMPTON

DATE OF DECISION: 28 JUNE 2018

REPORT OF: PHIL AUBREY-HARRIS, HEAD OF PRIMARY CARE,

SOUTHAMPTON CITY CCG

CONTACT DETAILS

AUTHOR: Name: | Phil Aubrey-Harris Tel: | 07971 690626

E-mail: | Phil.aubrey-harris@nhs.net

Director Name: | Peter Horne Tel: | 023 8029 6903
Director of System Delivery

E-mail: | Phorne@nhs.net

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

None

BRIEF SUMMARY

This paper provides a summary of Southampton City CCG’s commissioning of
Integrated Urgent Care services — including services currently referred to as NHS 111
and our GP out-of-hours services.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

(i) That the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel note the progress and
plans for developing a new IUC service for Southampton residents.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. In order to keep the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel appraised of an
important development in local NHS health services.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

2. Not applicable

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

3. The current NHS 111 service is a nationally specified service providing
patients with a first point of telephone contact to discuss their health issues,
assess their needs and direct them to the most appropriate information or
services. The service forms an important part of the urgent care system and
is currently commissioned by 5 CCG’s across Hampshire and is delivered by
the South Central Ambulance Service (SCAS). During 2017 NHS England
issued requirements for local health systems to commission new Integrated
Urgent Care (IUC) services marking a progressive development of the NHS
111 service and the interface with other relevant services.

4. National requirements for IUC include a range of refinements to the previous
NHS 111 model and require a higher level of integration with associated local
services. Outcomes for patients of the new service will include ensuring the
most appropriate treatment options to meet their needs and a smoother more
responsive customer experignce. Jihe new service will include an enhanced

ragt—=—o



Clinical Assessment Service (CAS) whereby a higher proportion of patients
(around 2/3) will speak directly to a clinician who will assess their needs and
determine the most appropriate care options. Where face-to-face assessment
is required, the IUC service will be able to directly book appointments in
appropriate services whilst the patient is on the call.

Over recent months, Southampton City CCG has worked with other CCG’s
across Hampshire to consider our commissioning options for |UC in
Hampshire. During April a decision was reached to work collaboratively with
our current providers including SCAS (provider of 111 service), Partnering for
Health (PHL — provider of GP out-of-hours services in southern Hampshire)
and North Hampshire Urgent Care (NHUC - provider of GP out-of-hours
services in northern Hampshire) to co-produce our IUC service over the next
12 to 18 months. In order to support this, the current providers have been
directly awarded contracts until 315t May 2021. This decision to proceed on
this basis was made following a review of options and market testing including
the issuing of an appropriate Prior Information Notice (PIN) in line with Public
Contracts Regulations 2015.

During the consideration of commissioning options, and in the development of
new service specifications, the CCG has undertaken a range of engagement
activities with local residents, patients and relevant stakeholder organisations.
This has included, for example, consultation with the Southampton Consult
and Challenge group, which includes diverse representation of patients and
users of local services and patient involvement in procurement.

Across the county CCG’s have opted for a range of solutions for
commissioning urgent face-to-face clinic appointments and home visits for
times when core GP services are closed (i.e. GP out-of-hours services).
These services will be highly integrated with the IUC and receive direct
bookings from the CAS. Southampton CCG is currently out to tender for a
new Enhanced and Urgent Primary Care service to deliver these elements,
with a view to the new contract commencing from 15t June 2019.

For further information on the IUC and Enhanced and Urgent Care Services
for Southampton please contact Phil Aubrey-Harris on phil.aubrey-
harris@nhs.net or 07971 690626.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Capital/Revenue

9. The commissioning of these services will be funded through Southampton
City CCG'’s allocation of NHS funds. Currently the total value of the contracts
described is circa £3.1m p.a.

Property/Other

10. The new services will largely function from existing healthcare facilities in
Southampton and across Hampshire

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

11.

Not applicable

Other Legal Implications:

12.

Not applicable



mailto:phil.aubrey-harris@nhs.net
mailto:phil.aubrey-harris@nhs.net

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

13. Risks associated with the commissioning of these services are managed
appropriately by Southampton City CCG.

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS

14. Not applicable

KEY DECISION? No

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: All

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

1. No appendices

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. Not applicable

Equality Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality and No
Safety Impact Assessment (ESIA) to be carried out.

Privacy Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require a Privacy Impact No

Assessment (PIA) to be carried out.

Other Background Documents
Other Background documents available for

inspection at:

Title of Background Paper(s)

Relevant Paragraph of the Access to
Information Procedure Rules /

Schedule 12A allowing document to
be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1. Not applicable

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	7 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (including matters arising)
	8 Winter Pressures 2017/18
	Appendix 1 - ORG report.docx

	9 Commissioning of Intergrated Urgent Care (IUC) Services for Southampton

